



CONTRACT NO. MA-042-18010431

FOR

**REAGENT RENTAL & TEST KITS FOR HIV & HEPATITIS
MARKERS**

BETWEEN

**THE COUNTY OF ORANGE
HEALTH CARE AGENCY**

AND

ABBOTT LABORATORIES INC.

Page No.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Table of Contents 2

Recitals..... 3

ARTICLES

General Terms and Conditions (A – CC) 3

Additional Terms and Conditions (1 – 33)..... 10

Signature Page 18

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A – Scope of Work 19

Attachment B – Compensation and Invoicing 21

Attachment C – Cost Summary/Pricing 23

Attachment D – County’s Security Requirements 25

EXHIBIT

Exhibit 1 – Child Support Enforcement Requirements 27

MA-042-18010431
WITH
ABBOTT LABORATORY INC.
FOR
REAGENT RENTAL AND TEST KITS FOR HIV AND HEPATITIS MARKERS

This Contract MA-042-18010431 for Reagent Rental and Test Kits for HIV and Hepatitis Markers (hereinafter referred to as "Contract") is made and entered into this 1st day of January, 2018 or upon fully executed by and between the County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California; hereinafter referred to as "County and Abbott Laboratories, Inc. with a place of business at 100 Abbott Park Rd., Abbott Park, IL 60064-3500 (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), with a County and Contractor sometimes referred to as "Party" or collectively as "Parties".

ATTACHMENTS

This Contract is comprised of this documents and the following Attachments, which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference into this Contract:

- Attachment A –Scope of Work
- Attachment B – Compensation and Invoicing
- Attachment C – Cost Summary/Pricing
- Attachment D - County's Security Requirements

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Contractor and County are entering into this Contract for Reagent Rental & Test Kits for HIV and Hepatitis Markers under a firm fixed fee Contract; and

WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide the Reagent Rental and Test Kits for HIV and Hepatitis Markers to the County as further set forth in the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A and Attachment C Cost Summary/Pricing; and

WHEREAS, County agrees to pay Contractor based on the schedule of fees set forth in Compensation and Invoicing, attached hereto as Attachment B; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

DPA shall mean the Deputy Purchasing Agent assigned to this Contract.

ARTICLES

General Terms and Conditions:

- A. **Governing Law and Venue:** This Contract has been negotiated and executed in the state of California and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the state of California. In the event of any legal action to enforce or interpret this Contract, the sole and exclusive venue shall be a court of competent jurisdiction located in Orange County, California, and the parties hereto agree

to and do hereby submit to the jurisdiction of such court, notwithstanding Code of Civil Procedure Section 394. Furthermore, the parties specifically agree to waive any and all rights to request that an action be transferred for adjudication to another county.

- B. **Entire Contract:** This Contract contains the entire Contract between the parties with respect to the matters herein, and there are no restrictions, promises, warranties or undertakings other than those set forth herein or referred to herein. No exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on County unless authorized by County in writing. Electronic acceptance of any additional terms, conditions or supplemental Contracts by any County employee or agent, including but not limited to installers of software, shall not be valid or binding on County unless accepted in writing by County's Purchasing Agent or designee.
- C. **Amendments:** No alteration or variation of the terms of this Contract shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by the parties; no oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein shall be binding on either of the parties; and no exceptions, alternatives, substitutes or revisions are valid or binding on County unless authorized by County in writing.
- D. **Taxes:** Unless otherwise provided herein or by law, price quoted does not include California state sales or use tax. Out-of-state Contractors shall indicate California Board of Equalization permit number and sales permit number on invoices, if California sales tax is added and collectable. If no permit numbers are shown, sales tax will be deducted from payment. The Auditor-Controller will then pay use tax directly to the State of California in lieu of payment of sales tax to the Contractor.
- E. **Delivery:** Time of delivery of goods or services is of the essence in this Contract. County reserves the right to refuse any goods or services and to cancel all or any part of the goods not conforming to applicable specifications, drawings, samples or descriptions or services that do not conform to the prescribed statement of work. Acceptance of any part of the order for goods shall not bind County to accept future shipments nor deprive it of the right to return goods already accepted at Contractor's expense. Over shipments and under shipments of goods shall be only as agreed to in writing by County. Delivery shall not be deemed to be complete until all goods or services have actually been received and accepted in writing by County.
- F. **Acceptance Payment:** Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by County, 1) acceptance shall not be deemed complete unless in writing and until all the goods/services have actually been received, inspected, and tested to the satisfaction of County, and 2) payment shall be made in arrears after satisfactory acceptance.
- G. **Warranty:** Contractor expressly warrants that the goods covered by this Contract are 1) free of liens or encumbrances, 2) merchantable and good for the ordinary purposes for which they are used, and 3) fit for the particular purpose for which they are intended. Acceptance of this order shall constitute an agreement upon Contractor's part to indemnify, defend and hold County and its indemnitees as identified in paragraph "Z" below, and as more fully described in paragraph "Z," harmless from liability, loss, damage and expense, including reasonable counsel fees, incurred or sustained by County by reason of the failure of the goods/services to conform to such warranties, faulty work performance, negligent or unlawful acts, and non-compliance with any applicable state or federal codes, ordinances, orders, or statutes, including the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) and the California Industrial Safety Act. Such remedies shall be in addition to any other remedies provided by law.
- H. **Patent/Copyright Materials/Proprietary Infringement:** Unless otherwise expressly provided in this Contract, Contractor shall be solely responsible for clearing the right to use any patented or copyrighted materials in the performance of this Contract. Contractor warrants that any software as modified through services provided hereunder will not infringe upon or violate any patent, proprietary right, or trade secret right of any third party. Contractor agrees that, in accordance with the more specific requirement contained in paragraph "Z" below, it shall indemnify, defend and hold County and County Indemnitees harmless from any and all such claims and be responsible for

payment of all costs, damages, penalties and expenses related to or arising from such claim(s), including, costs and expenses but not including attorney's fees.

- I. **Assignment:** The terms, covenants, and conditions contained herein shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of the parties. Furthermore, neither the performance of this Contract nor any portion thereof may be assigned by Contractor without the express written consent of County. Any attempt by Contractor to assign the performance or any portion thereof of this Contract without the express written consent of County shall be invalid and shall constitute a breach of this Contract.
- J. **Non-Discrimination:** In the performance of this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and not engage nor permit any subcontractors to engage in discrimination in employment of persons because of the race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex of such persons. Contractor acknowledges that a violation of this provision shall subject Contractor to penalties pursuant to Section 1741 of the California Labor Code.
- K. **Termination:** In addition to any other remedies or rights it may have by law, County has the right to immediately terminate this Contract without penalty for cause or after 30 days' written notice without cause, unless otherwise specified. Cause shall be defined as any material breach of contract, any misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the Contractor. Exercise by County of its right to terminate the Contract shall relieve County of all further obligation.
- L. **Consent to Breach Not Waiver:** No term or provision of this Contract shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent breach.
- M. **Independent Contractor:** Contractor shall be considered an independent contractor and neither Contractor, its employees, nor anyone working under Contractor shall be considered an agent or an employee of County. Neither Contractor, its employees nor anyone working under Contractor shall qualify for workers' compensation or other fringe benefits of any kind through County.
- N. **Performance Warranty:** Contractor shall warrant all work under this Contract, taking necessary steps and precautions to perform the work to County's satisfaction. Contractor shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical assurance, timely completion and coordination of all documentation and other goods/services furnished by the Contractor under this Contract. Contractor shall perform all work diligently, carefully, and in a good and workmanlike manner; shall furnish all necessary labor, supervision, machinery, equipment, materials, and supplies, shall at its sole expense obtain and maintain all permits and licenses required by public authorities, including those of County required in its governmental capacity, in connection with performance of the work. If permitted to subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible for all work performed by subcontractors.
- O. **Insurance Requirements:**
- Prior to the provision of services under this Contract, the Contractor agrees to purchase all required insurance at Contractor's expense, including all endorsements required herein, necessary to satisfy the County that the insurance provisions of this Contract have been complied with. Contractor agrees to keep such insurance coverage, Certificates of Insurance, and endorsements on deposit with the County during the entire term of this Contract. In addition, all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to this Contract shall obtain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor.

Contractor shall ensure that all subcontractors performing work on behalf of Contractor pursuant to

this Contract shall be covered under Contractor's insurance as an Additional Insured or maintain insurance subject to the same terms and conditions as set forth herein for Contractor. Contractor shall not allow subcontractors to work if subcontractors have less than the level of coverage required by County from Contractor under this Contract. It is the obligation of Contractor to provide notice of the insurance requirements to every subcontractor and to receive proof of insurance prior to allowing any subcontractor to begin work. Such proof of insurance must be maintained by Contractor through the entirety of this Contract for inspection by County representative(s) at any reasonable time.

All self-insured retentions (SIRs) shall be clearly stated on the Certificate of Insurance. Any self-insured retention (SIR) in an amount in excess of Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000) shall specifically be approved by the County's Risk Manager, or designee, upon review of Contractor's current audited financial report. If Contractor's SIR is approved, Contractor, in addition to, and without limitation of, any other indemnity provision(s) in this Contract, agrees to all of the following:

- 1) In addition to the duty to indemnify and hold the County harmless against any and all liability, claim, demand or suit resulting from Contractor's, its agents, employee's or subcontractor's performance of this Contract, Contractor shall defend the County at its sole cost and expense with counsel approved by Board of Supervisors against same; and
- 2) Contractor's duty to defend, as stated above, shall be absolute and irrespective of any duty to indemnify or hold harmless; and
- 3) The provisions of California Civil Code Section 2860 shall apply to any and all actions to which the duty to defend stated above applies, and the Contractor's SIR provision shall be interpreted as though the Contractor was an insurer and the County was the insured.

If the Contractor fails to maintain insurance acceptable to the County for the full term of this Contract, the County may terminate this Contract.

Qualified Insurer

The policy or policies of insurance must be issued by an insurer with a minimum rating of A- (Secure A.M. Best's Rating) and VIII (Financial Size Category as determined by the most current edition of the **Best's Key Rating Guide/Property-Casualty/United States or ambest.com**). It is preferred, but not mandatory, that the insurer be licensed to do business in the state of California (California Admitted Carrier).

If the insurance carrier does not have an A.M. Best Rating of A-/VIII, the CEO/Office of Risk Management retains the right to approve or reject a carrier after a review of the company's performance and financial ratings.

The policy or policies of insurance maintained by the Contractor shall provide the minimum limits and coverage as set forth below:
(Not required if a third party carrier is making deliveries.)

<u>Coverage</u>	<u>Minimum Limits</u>
Commercial General Liability \$2,000,000 aggregate	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability including coverage for owned, non-owned and hired vehicles (Not required if a third party carrier is making deliveries.)	\$1,000,000 per occurrence
Workers Compensation	Statutory

Employers Liability Insurance \$1,000,000 per occurrence

Required Coverage Forms

The Commercial General Liability coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01, or a substitute form providing liability coverage at least as broad.

The Business Auto Liability coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 0012, CA 00 20, or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad.

Required Endorsements

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain the following endorsements, which shall accompany the Certificate of Insurance:

- 1) An Additional Insured endorsement using ISO form CG 20 26 04 13 or a form at least as broad naming the **County of Orange its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** as Additional Insureds, or provide blanket coverage, which will state **AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.**
- 2) A primary non-contributing endorsement using ISO form CG 20 01 04 13, or a form at least as broad evidencing that the Contractor's insurance is primary and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the County of Orange shall be excess and non-contributing.

The Workers' Compensation policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement waiving all rights of subrogation against the **County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees** or provide blanket coverage, which will state **AS REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT.**

(Not required if a third party carrier is making deliveries.)

All insurance policies required by this Contract shall waive all rights of subrogation against the County of Orange, its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents and employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

Contractor shall notify County in writing within thirty (30) days of any policy cancellation and ten (10) days for non-payment of premium and provide a copy of the cancellation notice to County. Failure to provide written notice of cancellation may constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the County may suspend or terminate this Contract.

The Commercial General Liability policy shall contain a severability of interests clause also known as a "separation of insureds" clause (standard in the ISO CG 0001 policy).

Insurance certificates should be forwarded to the agency/department address listed on the solicitation.

If the Contractor fails to provide the insurance certificates and endorsements within seven (7) days of notification by CEO/Purchasing or the agency/department purchasing division, award may be made to the next qualified vendor.

County expressly retains the right to require Contractor to increase or decrease insurance of any of the above insurance types throughout the term of this Contract. Any increase or decrease in

insurance will be as deemed by County of Orange Risk Manager as appropriate to adequately protect County.

County shall notify Contractor in writing of changes in the insurance requirements. If Contractor does not deposit copies of acceptable Certificates of Insurance and endorsements with County incorporating such changes within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice, this Contract may be in breach without further notice to Contractor, and County shall be entitled to all legal remedies.

The procuring of such required policy or policies of insurance shall not be construed to limit Contractor's liability hereunder nor to fulfill the indemnification provisions and requirements of this Contract, nor act in any way to reduce the policy coverage and limits available from the insurer.

P. **Changes:** Contractor shall make no changes in the work or perform any additional work without the County's specific written approval.

Q. **Change of Ownership/Name, Litigation Status, Conflicts with County Interests:** Contractor agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of Contractor's business prior to completion of this Contract, the new owners shall be required under the terms of sale or other instruments of transfer to assume Contractor's duties and obligations contained in this Contract, and complete them to the reasonable satisfaction of the County.

County reserves the right to immediately terminate the Contract in the event the County reasonably determines that the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the County for the provision of services under the Contract.

In addition, Contractor has the duty to notify the County in writing of any change in the Contractor's status with respect to name changes that do not require an assignment of the Contract. To the extent allowed under applicable law, the Contractor is also obligated to notify the County in writing if the Contractor becomes a party to any litigation against the County which involves the products provided under this Contract, or a party to litigation that may reasonably affect the Contractor's performance under the Contract.

The Contractor shall have or shall establish rules and procedures preventing its employees, agents, and subcontractors from providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to influence or appear to influence County staff or elected officers in the performance of their duties.

R. **Force Majeure:** Contractor shall not be assessed with liquidated damages or unsatisfactory performance penalties during any delay beyond the time named for the performance of this Contract caused by any act of God, war, civil disorder, employment strike or other cause beyond its reasonable control, provided Contractor gives written notice of the cause of the delay to County within 36 hours of the start of the delay and Contractor avails himself of any available remedies.

S. **Confidentiality:** Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of all County and County-related records and information pursuant to all statutory laws relating to privacy and confidentiality that currently exist or exist at any time during the term of this Contract. All such records and information shall be considered confidential and kept confidential by Contractor and Contractor's staff, agents and employees.

T. **Compliance with Laws:** Contractor represents and warrants that services to be provided under this Contract shall fully comply, at Contractor's expense, with all standards, laws, statutes, restrictions, ordinances, requirements, and regulations (collectively "laws"), including, but not limited to those issued by County in its governmental capacity and all other laws applicable to the services at the time services are provided to and accepted by County. Contractor acknowledges that County is relying on Contractor to ensure such compliance, and pursuant to the requirements

Deleted: <#>**Change of Ownership:** Contractor agrees that if there is a change or transfer in ownership of Contractor's business prior to completion of this Contract, and the County agrees to an assignment of the Contract, the new owners shall be required under terms of sale or other transfer to assume Contractor's duties and obligations contained in this Contract and complete them to the satisfaction of the County. ¶
<#>¶
<#>County reserves the right to immediately terminate the Contract in the event the County determines that the assignee is not qualified or is otherwise unacceptable to the County for the provision of services under the Contract. ¶

Deleted: Q.

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Highlight

Formatted: Normal, Left, Indent: Hanging: 0.5", Right: 0", Don't add space between paragraphs of the same style, Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at:

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Not Bold, Font color: Auto, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 10 pt, Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5"

Deleted: ¶

of paragraph "Z" below, Contractor agrees that it shall defend, indemnify and hold County and County Indemnitees harmless from all liability, damages, costs and expenses arising from or related to a violation of such laws.

- U. **Freight:** Prior to the County's express acceptance of delivery of products. Contractor assumes full responsibility for all transportation, transportation scheduling, packing, handling, insurance, and other services associated with delivery of all products deemed necessary under this Contract.
- V. **Severability:** If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Contract is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby.
- W. **Attorney Fees:** In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this Contract, each party shall bear their own attorney's fees, costs and expenses.
- X. **Interpretation:** This Contract has been negotiated at arm's length and between persons sophisticated and knowledgeable in the matters dealt with in this Contract. In addition, each party had been represented by experienced and knowledgeable independent legal counsel of their own choosing or has knowingly declined to seek such counsel despite being encouraged and given the opportunity to do so. Each party further acknowledges that they have not been influenced to any extent whatsoever in executing this Contract by any other party hereto or by any person representing them, or both. Accordingly, any rule or law (including California Civil Code Section 1654) or legal decision that would require interpretation of any ambiguities in this Contract against the party that has drafted it is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this Contract shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose of the parties and this Contract.
- Y. **Employee Eligibility Verification:** The Contractor warrants that it fully complies with all Federal and State statutes and regulations regarding the employment of aliens and others and that all its employees performing work under this Contract meet the citizenship or alien status requirement set forth in Federal statutes and regulations. The Contractor shall obtain, from all employees performing work hereunder, all verification and other documentation of employment eligibility status required by Federal or State statutes and regulations including, but not limited to, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, 8 U.S.C. §1324 et seq., as they currently exist and as they may be hereafter amended. The Contractor shall retain all such documentation for all covered employees for the period prescribed by the law. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County, and hold harmless, the County, its agents, officers, and employees from employer sanctions and any other liability which may be assessed against the Contractor or the County or both in connection with any alleged violation of any Federal or State statutes or regulations pertaining to the eligibility for employment of any persons performing work under this Contract.
- Z. **Indemnification:** Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend with counsel approved in writing by County, and hold County, its elected and appointed officials, officers, employees, agents and those special districts and agencies which County's Board of Supervisors acts as the governing Board ("County Indemnitees") harmless from any claims, demands or liability of any kind or nature, including but not limited to personal injury or property damage, arising from or related to the services, products or other performance provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract. If judgment is entered against Contractor and County by a court of competent jurisdiction because of the concurrent active negligence of County or County Indemnitees, Contractor and County agree that liability will be apportioned as determined by the court. Neither party shall request a jury apportionment.
- AA. **Audits/Inspections:** Contractor agrees to permit the County's Auditor-Controller or the Auditor-Controller's authorized representative (including auditors from a private auditing firm hired by the County) access during normal working hours to all books, accounts, records, reports, files, financial records, supporting documentation, including payroll and accounts payable/receivable records, and

other papers or property of Contractor for the purpose of auditing or inspecting any aspect of performance under this Contract. The inspection and/or audit will be confined to those matters connected with the performance of the Contract including, but not limited to, the costs of administering the Contract. The County will provide reasonable notice of such an audit or inspection.

The County reserves the right to audit and verify the Contractor's records before final payment is made.

Contractor agrees to maintain such records for possible audit for a minimum of three years after final payment, unless a longer period of records retention is stipulated under this Contract or by law. Contractor agrees to allow interviews of any employees or others who might reasonably have information related to such records. Further, Contractor agrees to include a similar right to the County to audit records and interview staff of any subcontractor related to performance of this Contract.

Should the Contractor cease to exist as a legal entity, the Contractor's records pertaining to this agreement shall be forwarded to the County's project manager.

BB. **Contingency of Funds:** Contractor acknowledges that funding or portions of funding for this Contract may be contingent upon state budget approval; receipt of funds from, and/or obligation of funds by, the state of California to County; and inclusion of sufficient funding for the services hereunder in the budget approved by County's Board of Supervisors for each fiscal year covered by this Contract. If such approval, funding or appropriations are not forthcoming, or are otherwise limited, County may immediately terminate or modify this Contract without penalty.

CC. **Expenditure Limit:** The Contractor shall notify the County of Orange assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent in writing when the expenditures against the Contract reach 75 percent of the dollar limit on the Contract. The County will not be responsible for any expenditure overruns and will not pay for work exceeding the dollar limit on the Contract unless a change order to cover those costs has been issued.

Additional Terms and Conditions:

1. **Scope of Contract:** This Contract specifies the contractual terms and conditions by which the County will procure Reagent Rental and Test Kits for HIV and Hepatitis Markers from Contractor as further detailed in the Scope of Work, identified and incorporated herein by this reference as "Attachment A".

2. **Term of Contract:** This Contract shall commence on January 1, 2019, 2020 through and including December 31, 2019, 2020, renewable for ~~three (3)~~ two (2) additional one-year periods upon agreement of both Parties. The County does not have to give reason if it decides not to renew. Contract shall be in effect for the time periods specified, unless this Contract is earlier terminated by the Parties.

3. **Adjustments – Scope of Work:** No adjustments made to the Scope of Work will be authorized without prior written approval of the County assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent.

4. **Breach of Contract:** The failure of the Contractor to comply with any of the provisions, covenants or conditions of this Contract shall be a material breach of this Contract. In such event the County may, and in addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity, or otherwise specified in this Contract:

a) Terminate the Contract immediately, pursuant to Section K herein;

- Deleted: 8
- Deleted: 19
- Deleted: 8
- Deleted: 19
- Deleted: four
- Deleted: 4
- Deleted: three
- Deleted: 3

- b) Afford the Contractor written notice of the breach and ten (10) calendar days or such shorter time that may be specified in this Contract within which to cure the breach;
 - c) Discontinue payment to the Contractor for and during the period in which the Contractor is in breach; and
 - d) Offset against any monies billed by the Contractor but yet unpaid by the County those monies disallowed pursuant to the above.
5. **Civil Rights:** Contractor attests that services provided shall be in accordance with the provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended; Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, and other applicable State and federal laws and regulations prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, sex or disability.
6. **Conflict of Interest – Contractor’s Personnel:** The Contractor shall exercise reasonable care and diligence to prevent any actions or conditions that could result in a conflict with the best interests of the County. This obligation shall apply to the Contractor; the Contractor’s employees, agents, and subcontractors associated with accomplishing work and services hereunder. The Contractor’s efforts shall include, but not be limited to establishing precautions to prevent its employees, agents, and subcontractors from providing or offering gifts, entertainment, payments, loans or other considerations which could be deemed to influence or appear to influence County staff or elected officers from acting in the best interests of the County.
7. **Conflict of Interest – County Personnel:** The County of Orange Board of Supervisors policy prohibits its employees from engaging in activities involving a conflict of interest. The Contractor shall not, during the period of this Contract, employ any County employee for any purpose.
8. **Contractor’s Project Manager and Key Personnel:** Contractor shall appoint a Project Manager to direct the Contractor’s efforts in fulfilling Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. This Project Manager shall be subject to approval by the County and shall not be changed without the written consent of the County’s Project Manager, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- The Contractor’s Project Manager shall be assigned to this project for the duration of the Contract and shall diligently pursue all work and services to meet the project time lines. The County’s Project Manager shall have the right to require the removal and replacement of the Contractor’s Project Manager from providing services to the County under this Contract. The County’s Project manager shall notify the Contractor in writing of such action. The Contractor shall accomplish the removal within five (5) business days after written notice by the County’s Project Manager. The County’s Project Manager shall review and approve the appointment of the replacement for the Contractor’s Project Manager. The County is not required to provide any additional information, reason or rationale in the event it requires the removal of Contractor’s Project Manager from providing further services under the Contract.
9. **Contractor Personnel – Reference Checks:** The Contractor warrants that all persons employed to provide service under this Contract have satisfactory past work records indicating their ability to adequately perform the work under this Contract. Contractor’s employees assigned to this project must meet character standards as demonstrated by background investigation and reference checks, coordinated by the agency/department issuing this Contract.
10. **Contractor’s Expense:** The Contractor will be responsible for all costs related to photo copying, telephone communications, fax communications, and parking while on County sites during the

performance of work and services under this Contract. The County will not provide free parking for any service in the County Civic Center.

11. **Contractor Personnel – Uniform/Badges/Identification:** The Contractor warrants that all persons employed to provide service under this Contract have satisfactory past work records indicating their ability to accept the kind of responsibility under this Contract.

All Contractor's employees shall be required to wear uniforms, badges, or other means of identification which are to be furnished by the Contractor and must be worn at all times while working on County property. The assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent must be notified in writing, within seven (7) days of notification of award of Contract of the uniform and/or badges and/or other identification to be worn by employees prior to beginning work and notified in writing seven (7) days prior to any changes in this procedure.

12. **Contractor's Records:** The Contractor shall keep true and accurate accounts, records, books and data which shall correctly reflect the business transacted by the Contractor in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. These records shall be stored in Orange County for a period of three (3) years after final payment is received from the County. Storage of records in another county will require written approval from the County of Orange assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent.

13. **Conditions Affecting Work:** The Contractor shall be responsible for taking all steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature and location of the work to be performed under this Contract and to know the general conditions which can affect the work or the cost thereof. Any failure by the Contractor to do so will not relieve Contractor from responsibility for successfully performing the work without additional cost to the County. The County assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning the nature, location(s) or general conditions made by any of its officers or agents prior to the execution of this Contract, unless such understanding or representations by the County are expressly stated in the Contract.

14. **Cooperative Agreement:** The provisions and pricing of this Contract will be extended to other California local or state governmental entities. Governmental entities wishing to use this Contract will be responsible for issuing their own purchase documents/price agreements, providing for their own acceptance, and making any subsequent payments. Contractor shall be required to include in any Contract entered into with another agency or entity that is entered into as an extension of this Contract a Contract clause that will hold harmless the County of Orange from all claims, demands, actions or causes of actions of every kind resulting directly or indirectly, arising out of, or in any way connected with the use of this contract. Failure to do so will be considered a material breach of this Contract and grounds for immediate Contract termination. The cooperative entities are responsible for obtaining all certificates of insurance and bonds required. The Contractor is responsible for providing each cooperative entity a copy of the Contract upon request by the cooperative entity. The County of Orange makes no guarantee of usage by other users of this Contract.

The Contractor shall be required to maintain a list of the cooperative entities using this Contract. The list shall report dollar volumes spent annually and shall be provided on an annual basis to the County, at the County's request.

15. **County of Orange Child Support Enforcement:** All Contractors are required to comply with the child support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange. Failure of the Contractor to comply with all federal, state, and local reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of the Contract. In order to comply with the child support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange, all bidders/proposers must furnish to the Contract administrator, the Purchasing Agent, or the agency/department Deputy Purchasing Agent:

- A. In the case of an individual Contractor, his/her name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address;
- B. In the case of a Contractor doing business in a form other than as an individual, the name, date of birth, Social Security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of 10 percent or more in the Contracting entity;
- C. A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all applicable federal and state reporting requirements regarding its employees; and
- D. A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to so comply.

Failure to cure such breach within 60 calendar days of notice from the County shall constitute grounds for termination of the Contract.

- 16. **Data – Title To:** All materials, documents, data or information obtained from the County data files or any County medium furnished to the Contractor in the performance of this Contract will at all times remain the property of the County. Such data or information may not be used or copied for direct or indirect use by the Contractor after completion or termination of this Contract without the express written consent of the County. All materials, documents, data or information, including copies, must be returned to the County at the end of this Contract.
- 17. **Default – Reprocurement Costs:** In case of Contract breach by Contractor, resulting in termination by the County, the County may procure the goods and/or services from other sources. If the cost for those goods and/or services is higher than under the terms of the existing Contract, Contractor will be responsible for paying the County the difference between the Contract cost and the price paid, and the County may deduct this cost from any unpaid balance due the Contractor. The price paid by the County shall be the prevailing market price at the time such purchase is made. This is in addition to any other remedies available under this Contract and under law.
- 18. **Disputes – Contract:**
 - A. The parties shall deal in good faith and attempt to resolve potential disputes informally. If the dispute concerning a question of fact arising under the terms of this Contract is not disposed of in a reasonable period of time by the Contractor's Project Manager and the County's Project Manager, such matter shall be brought to the attention of the County Deputy Purchasing Agent by way of the following process:
 - 1. The Contractor shall submit to the agency/department assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent a written demand for a final decision regarding the disposition of any dispute between the parties arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, unless the County, on its own initiative, has already rendered such a final decision.
 - 2. The Contractor's written demand shall be fully supported by factual information, and, if such demand involves a cost adjustment to the Contract, the Contractor shall include with the demand a written statement signed by a senior official indicating that the demand is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract adjustment for which the Contractor believes the County is liable.
 - B. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to, or involving this Contract, the Contractor agrees to diligently proceed with the performance of this Contract, including the delivery of goods and/or provision of services. The Contractor's failure to diligently proceed shall be considered a material breach of this Contract.

Any final decision of the County shall be expressly identified as such, shall be in writing, and shall be signed by the County Deputy Purchasing Agent or his designee. If the County fails to render a decision within 90 days after receipt of the Contractor's demand, it shall be deemed a final decision adverse to the Contractor's contentions. Nothing in this section shall be construed as affecting the County's right to terminate the Contract for cause or termination for convenience as stated in section K herein.

19. **Drug-Free Workplace:** The Contractor hereby certifies compliance with Government Code Section 8355 in matters relating to providing a drug-free workplace. The Contractor will:

1. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for violations, as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(1).
2. Establish a drug-free awareness program as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(2) to inform employees about all of the following:
 - a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
 - b. The organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
 - c. Any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and
 - d. Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
3. Provide as required by Government Code Section 8355(a)(3) that every employee who works under this Contract:
 - a. Will receive a copy of the company's drug-free policy statement; and
 - b. Will agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment under this Contract.

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under the Contract or termination of the Contract or both, and the Contractor may be ineligible for award of any future County contracts if the County determines that any of the following has occurred:

1. The Contractor has made false certification, or
 2. The Contractor violates the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above.
20. **Lobbying:** On the best information and belief, Contractor certifies no federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by, or on behalf of, the Contractor to any person influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative contract.
21. **Emergency/Declared Disaster Requirements:** In the event of an emergency or if Orange County is declared a disaster area by the County, state or federal government, this Contract may be subjected to unusual usage. The Contractor shall service the County during such an emergency or declared disaster under the same terms and conditions that apply during non-

emergency/disaster conditions. The pricing quoted by the Contractor shall apply to serving the County's needs regardless of the circumstances. If the Contractor is unable to supply the goods/services under the terms of the Contract, then the Contractor shall provide proof of such disruption and a copy of the invoice for the goods/services from the Contractor's supplier(s). Additional profit margin as a result of supplying goods/services during an emergency or a declared disaster shall not be permitted. In the event of an emergency or declared disaster, emergency purchase order numbers will be assigned. All applicable invoices from the Contractor shall show both the emergency purchase order number and the Contract number

22. **Errors and Omissions:** All reports, files and other documents prepared and submitted by Contractor shall be complete and shall be carefully checked by the professional(s) identified by Contractor as project manager and key personnel attached hereto, prior to submission to the County. Contractor agrees that County review is discretionary and Contractor shall not assume that the County will discover errors and/or omissions. If the County discovers any errors or omissions prior to approving Contractor's reports, files and other written documents, the reports, files or documents will be returned to Contractor for correction. Should the County or others discover errors or omissions in the reports, files or other written documents submitted by the Contractor after County approval thereof, County approval of Contractor's reports, files or documents shall not be used as a defense by Contractor in any action between the County and Contractor, and the reports, files or documents will be returned to Contractor for correction.
23. **Equal Employment Opportunity:** The Contractor shall comply with U.S. Executive Order 11246 entitled, "Equal Employment Opportunity" as amended by Executive Order 11375 and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR, Part 60) and applicable state of California regulations as may now exist or be amended in the future. The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, marital status, political affiliation or physical or mental condition.

Regarding handicapped persons, the Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to provide equal opportunity to handicapped persons in employment or in advancement in employment or otherwise treat qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their physical or mental handicaps in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, promotions, transfers, recruitments, advertising, layoffs, terminations, rate of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, pertaining to prohibition of discrimination against qualified handicapped persons in all programs and/or activities as detailed in regulations signed by the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services effective June 3, 1977, and found in the Federal Register, Volume 42, No. 68 dated May 4, 1977, as may now exist or be amended in the future.

Regarding Americans with disabilities, Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions of Title 1 of the Americans with Disabilities Act enacted in 1990 as may now exist or be amended in the future.

24. **News/Information Release:** The Contractor agrees that it will not issue any news releases in connection with either the award of this Contract or any subsequent amendment of or effort under this Contract without first obtaining review and written approval of said news releases from the County through the County's Project Manager.
25. **Notices:** Any and all notices, requests demands and other communications contemplated, called for, permitted, or required to be given hereunder shall be in writing with a copy provided to the assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent (DPA), except through the course of the parties' project managers' routine exchange of information and cooperation during the terms of the work and services. Any written communications shall be deemed to have been duly given upon actual in-

person delivery, if delivery is by direct hand, or upon delivery on the actual day of receipt or no greater than four (4) calendar days after being mailed by US certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, whichever occurs first. The date of mailing shall count as the first day. All communications shall be addressed to the appropriate party at the address stated herein or such other address as the parties hereto may designate by written notice from time to time in the manner aforesaid.

For Contractor:	Name:	Abbott Laboratories, Inc.
	Attention:	Karem P. Bass, Key Acct. Rep.
	Address:	100 Abbott Park Rd. Abbott Park, IL Rd.
	Telephone:	(949) 400-4901 (Cell)
	E-mail:	karem_escobarbass@abbott.com
For County:	Name:	County of Orange HCA/Purchasing
	Attention:	John Martinez
	Address:	200 W. Santa Ana Blvd Ste. 650 Santa Ana, CA 92701
	Telephone:	(714) 834-3746
	E-mail:	jomartinez@ochca.com
CC:	Name:	County of Orange
	Attention:	Health Care Agency/Purchasing
	Address:	Erica Lara 1729 W. 17 th St. Santa Ana, CA 92706
	Telephone:	(714) 834-8245
	E-mail:	elara@ochca.com

26. **Precedence:** The Contract documents consist of this Contract and its exhibits and attachments. In the event of a conflict between or among the Contract documents, the order of precedence shall be the provisions of the main body of this Contract, i.e., those provisions set forth in the recitals and articles of this Contract, and then the exhibits and attachments.
27. **Termination – Orderly:** After receipt of a termination notice from the County of Orange, the Contractor may submit to the County a termination claim, if applicable. Such claim shall be submitted promptly, but in no event later than 60 days from the effective date of the termination, unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the County upon written request of the Contractor. Upon termination County agrees to pay the Contractor for all services performed prior to termination which meet the requirements of the Contract, provided, however, that such compensation combined with previously paid compensation shall not exceed the total compensation set forth in the Contract. Upon termination or other expiration of this Contract, each party shall promptly return to the other party all papers, materials, and other properties of the other held by each for purposes of performance of the Contract.
28. **Usage:** No guarantee is given by the County to the Contractor regarding usage of this Contract. Usage figures, if provided, are approximations. The Contractor agrees to supply services and/or commodities requested, as needed by the County of Orange, at rates/prices listed in the Contract, regardless of quantity requested.

29. **Usage Reports:** The Contractor shall submit usage reports on an annual basis to the assigned Deputy Purchasing Agent of the County of Orange user agency/department. The usage report shall be in a format specified by the user agency/department and shall be submitted 90 days prior to the expiration date of the contract term, or any subsequent renewal term, if applicable.
30. **Security:** Intentionally left blank
31. **Debarment:** To the extent applicable, Contractor shall certify in writing that neither Contractor nor its employee(s) are presently debarred, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in a contractual transaction by any state or federal department or agency. Where Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in the written certification, Contractor must include a written explanation thereon for the County to consider. County shall have the right to refuse to enter into this Contract with the Contractor, or terminate this Contract if already entered into, if Contractor either fails to certify or certifies that it is subject of any debarment, pending debarment, declared ineligible or voluntary exclusion from participation by any state or federal department or agency.
32. **Contractor Screening:** Throughout the term of this Contract, Contractor shall not be listed on any state or federal exclusionary rosters, listed below. County may screen Contractor on a monthly basis to ensure Contractor is not listed on the exclusionary rosters, listed below. If Contractor or its employee(s) are found to be included on any of the rosters indicated below, Contractor shall be deemed in default of its obligation under this Paragraph and shall constitute a cause for County to exercise its right to terminate this Contract immediately. County, in its sole discretion, may afford Contractor an opportunity to cure said default within a reasonable time.
- a. United States Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Inspector General (OIG) List of Excluded Individuals & Entities (LEIE) (<http://exclusions.oig.hhs.gov>).
 - b. General Services Administration (GSA) System for Award Management (SAM) Excluded Parties List (<http://sam.gov>).
 - c. State of California Department of Health Care Services Medi-Cal Suspended and Ineligible Provider List (County Health Care Agency Internal Database).
33. **Parking for Delivery Services:** The County of Orange will not provide free parking for delivery services.

(Signature Page Follows)

CONTRACT SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Contract on the dates shown opposite their respective signatures below.

Contractor's name: Abbott Laboratories, Inc.*

Print Name Title

Signature Date

Print Name Title

Signature Date

If the company is a corporation **two signatures are required: one signature by the Chairman of the Board, President, or any Vice President; and one signature by the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Chief Financial Officer or any Assistant Treasurer.** If signed by one authorized individual only, a copy of the corporate resolution or by-laws whereby the board of directors has empowered said authorized individual to act on its behalf by his or her signature alone is required.

County of Orange, a political subdivision of the State of California

Print Name Deputy Purchasing Agent
Title

Signature Date

Approved as to Form
Office of the County Counsel
County of Orange, California

Print Name Title

Signature Date

ATTACHMENT A SCOPE OF WORK

I. BACKGROUND

The Orange County Public Health Laboratory (OCPHL) currently offers serological testing for HIV and Hepatitis markers in support of the Public Health clinics and programs. The accurate testing and timely reporting of results to clinicians is the primary goal of the laboratory to help in disease surveillance, control and prevention. The OCPHL is looking to acquire an automated immunoassay system on a reagent rental basis that uses Food and Drug Administration (FDA) cleared test kits. The annual volumes of tests performed by OCPHL are as follows:

- HIV 1, 2 antibody screen 10,500
- Hepatitis A IgM 200, Hepatitis A Total 1,300
- Hepatitis B surface Ag 5,200, Hepatitis B core total 4,500, Hepatitis B core IgM 220, Anti-Hepatitis B surface Ag 4,400
- Hepatitis C 6, 100
- Syphilis TP, 140

II. DELIVERABLES

A. Test Kit Specifications:

Contractor must have FDA cleared test kits for:

1. Fourth generation HIV ½ plus 0 Ag/Antibody Combo
2. Hepatitis A IgM and Total or IgG
3. Hepatitis BsAg, Hepatitis BsAg confirmation, Anti-Hepatitis BsAg, Hepatitis B core total, Hepatitis B core IgM
4. Third generation Hepatitis C

B. Instrument Specification Requirements:

1. Must be FDA cleared for all test kits listed above.
2. Fully automated platform with primary tube random access capability.
3. Walk-away system from time of loading specimens and reagents to the availability of the test results.
4. Supports 60 sample capacity in one run.
5. Daily start up is not required.
6. Allows continuous loading of samples.
7. Utilizes disposable pipette tips or alternate method to eliminate sample-to-sample carryover.
8. No pause loading of samples, reagents, consumables and supplies.
9. Allows automatic repeat, and Reflex testing with no operator intervention.
10. Clot detection and management.
11. Capacity to store reagents refrigerated onboard.
12. Has universal sample racks that take multiple size primary tubes.

C. Laboratory Information System Interface (LIS) Specifications:

1. Contractor shall have the capability to interface with Cerner Millennium Pathnet applications with capability to read Cerner bar code on patient sample tubes.

2. Contractor shall provide all necessary support needed for the programming and maintenance of the interface in coordination with the OCPHL staff and Orange County Information Technology (IT) staff.

D. Training:

1. Contractor shall provide for one (1) of County's staff members to attend Contractor's instrument operator training school at no cost for tuition, training materials, travel and lodging to County.
2. Contractor shall provide additional on-site training as needed.

E. Instrument Maintenance:

Instrument rental shall include insurance, repair, and calibration at no additional cost to the County. There shall be a total of one (1) scheduled preventative maintenance visit per year.

F. Contractual Requirements:

1. Contractor shall provide a designated sales representative to account to help resolve technical and/or contractual issues.
2. Contractor shall provide a designated customer service person to handle account standing order.
3. There is no guarantee as to annual usage requirement for the items in this Contract. The amount may increase or decrease based upon the laboratory's demands.
4. Contractor must be able to deliver the items listed/requested within five (5) days of ordering.
5. Contractor must provide notification to OCPHL for items placed on backorder for more than two (2) weeks from date of ordering.
6. Any changes in product availability and production and/or specifications, a notice shall be provided in writing to OCPHL thirty (30) days in advance.
7. Contractor must be able to fulfill urgent delivery requirement for overnight delivery.
8. Contractor must allow return or provide full credit for items with expiration dates allowing for an unreasonable shelf life. Return shipping is the responsibility of the Contractor.

G. UPS and Printer:

Contractor shall provide Uninterrupted Power Supply (UPS) and a table top printer at no additional cost to County.

H. Evaluation Kits:

Contractor shall provide one test kit of each assay and consumable for evaluation purposes if required due to updates to the test kits at no charge to the County. Evaluation kits ordered by non-priority shipping will be shipped at no cost to the County.

**ATTACHMENT B
COMPENSATION AND INVOICING**

I. COMPENSATION

This is a fixed-fee price Contract not to exceed ~~\$250,000~~ \$500,000 for the period of January 1, 2019, 2020 through and including December 31, 2019, 2020; renewable for ~~three (3)~~ two (2) additional one-year periods upon agreement of both Parties between the County and the Contractor for the provision of a Reagent Rental and Test Kits for HIV and Hepatitis Markers as provided in Attachment A, Scope of Work and Attachment C Cost Summary/Pricing.

Contractor agrees to accept the specified compensation as full remuneration for performing all services and furnishing all staffing and materials called for; for any reasonably foreseen difficulties under the responsibility of Contractor which may arise or be encountered in the execution of the services until their acceptance; for risks connected with the services; and for performance by Contractor of all of its duties and obligations hereunder. The fixed price shall include the fee and all expenses related to the performance of work and services required to meet the tasks and deliverables in the Scope of Work, set forth more fully in Attachment A and Attachment C Cost Summary/Pricing.

The County shall have no obligation to pay any sum in excess of the total Contract amount specified unless authorized by an amendment in accordance with Paragraphs C and P of the County's General Terms and Conditions.

II. PAYMENT TERMS

Invoices are to be submitted in arrears to the address listed below. Payment of invoices will be net thirty (30) days after the receipt of an acceptable invoice submitted in accordance with the terms set forth herein. The invoice must be verified and approved by County's Project Manager and is subject to routine processing requirements of County. Invoices will not be paid if goods/services have not been appropriately delivered as determined by County Project Manager.

Billing shall cover only those services not previously invoiced. Contractor shall reimburse County for any monies paid to Contractor for goods and/or services not provided or when goods and/or services do not meet the Contract requirements.

Payment made by County shall not preclude the right of County from thereafter disputing any items or services involved or billed under this Contract and shall not be construed as acceptance of any part of the services.

III. PAYMENT (ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER) - INVOICING INSTRUCTIONS

County offers contractors the option of receiving payment directly to their bank account via an Electronic Fund Transfer (EFT) process in lieu of a check payment. Payment made via EFT will also receive an Electronic Remittance Advice with the payment details via e-mail. An e-mail address will need to be provided to County via an EFT Authorization Form. To request a form, please contact the agency/department representative listed in the Contract.

- 1. Invoices and all supporting documentation shall be submitted to:

HEALTH CARE AGENCY: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
P.O. BOX 689
SANTA ANA, CA 92702-0689

Deleted: 8
Deleted: 19
Deleted: 8
Deleted: 19
Deleted: four
Deleted: 4
Deleted: hree
Deleted: 3

2 Contractor shall provide a two-part invoice on Contractor's letterhead for goods delivered and/or services rendered. In the case of goods, Contractor shall leave an invoice with each delivery. Each invoice shall have a number and shall include the following information:

- a. Contractor's Name and Address
- b. Contractor's Remittance Address, if different from a, above
- c. Contractor's Tax Identification Number(TIN) or Employer's Identification Number (EIN)
- d. Name of County Agency
- e. Delivery/Service Address
- f. Master Agreement Number **MA-042-18010431**
- g. Description of Services;
- h. Sales Tax, if applicable
- i. Freight/Delivery Charges, if applicable
- j. Date(s) of Performance of Service
- k. Amount of Payment Requested

The responsibility for providing acceptable invoice(s) to County for payment rests with Contractor. Incomplete or incorrect invoices are not acceptable and will be returned.

REVISED - ATTACHMENT C**COST SUMMARY/PRICING**

Line#	Product#	Product/Description	Unit Price
1	01L56-40	Arch Probe Conditioning Solution	\$81.11
2	01L79-01	HCV 2.0, Calibrator	\$104.91
3	01L79-10	HCV 2.0, Control	\$104.91
4	01L79-25	Architect A-HCV (100T)	\$463.00
5	01L82-03	Ausab, Calibrator	\$104.91
6	01L82-13	Ausab, Control	\$104.91
7	01L82-27	Ausab, Architect (100T)	\$205.00
8	02P36-01	HIV Combo, Calibrator	\$150.00
9	02P36-10	HIV Combo, Control	\$150.00
10	02P36-25	HIV Combo, Architect (100T)	\$471.00
11	04D18-03	Architect Septum (200PKG)	\$10.76
12	04D19-01	Arch Replacement Caps	\$31.90
13	04P53-01	Architect HBsAg Qualitative Calibrator Kit	\$189.26
14	04P53-10	Architect HBsAg Qualitative Control Kit	\$104.91
15	04P53-25	Architect HBsAg Qualitative Reagent Kit (100T)	\$295.00
16	04P54-40	Architect HBsAg Qualitative Confirmatory Manual Diluent	\$117.00
17	04P54-25	Architect HBsAg Qualitative Confirmatory Reagent	\$1,576.00
18	06C54-58	Arch Wash Buffer (4 BTLS)	\$53.53
19	06C55-60	Arch Trigger Solution	\$53.53
20	06E23-65	Arch Pre Trigger Solution (4 BTLS)	\$129.78
21	06L21-01	HAVAB-M, Calibrator	\$162.23
22	06L21-10	HAVAB-M, Control	\$104.91
23	06L21-25	HAVAB-M, Architect (100T)	\$463.00
24	06L22-01	Core, Calibrator	\$262.50
25	06L22-10	Core, Control	\$367.50
26	06L22-25	Core, Architect (100T)	\$332.00
27	06L23-01	Core-M, Calibrator	\$162.23
28	06L23-10	Core-M, Control	\$162.23
29	06L23-25	Core-M, Architect (100T)	\$463.00

30	06L27-01	HAVAB-G Cal, Architect	\$139.00
31	06L27-10	HAVAB-G Ctr. Architect	\$139.00
32	06L27-25	HAVAR-G, Architect	\$351.00
33	07C14-01	Arch Sample Cups	\$81.11
34	07C15-03	Arch Reaction Vessels (4000BX)	\$109.74
35	08C94-47	Arch Probe (sample/reagent)	\$133.90
36	8D06-31	Architect Syphilis TP kit (100 test kit)	\$461.00
37	8D06-04	Architect Syphilis TP Calibrator	\$179.86
38	8D06-13	Architect Syphilis TP Controls	\$179.86

- A. Miscellaneous Clause:** Miscellaneous related items in an amount not to exceed \$10,000 per unit may be purchased. Quote shall be provide and approved by Deputy Purchasing Agent.
- B. Freight:** Freight charges are to be prepaid by Contractor and added to the invoice. County is authorized to receive **one free ship day per month** as long as County commits to and purchases over \$100,000 in annual reagents.

ATTACHMENT D

COUNTY'S SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

- A. All records and information concerning any and all matters referred to Contractor by County shall be considered as Confidential Information and kept confidential by Contractor and Contractor's officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, and sub-tiers. Confidential Information obtained by either Party in the performance of this Contract shall be treated as strictly confidential and shall not be used by the other for any purpose other than the performance of this Contract.
- B. Except as expressly permitted by this Contract, Contractor and County will not, nor will they permit their respective employees, agents, attorneys or independent contractors to, disclose other than as provided in this Contract, use, copy, distribute, sell, license, publish, reproduce or otherwise make available Confidential Information of the other Party. Contractor and County will each:
 - 1. Secure and protect the other Party's Confidential Information by using the same or greater level of care than it uses to protect its own confidential and proprietary information of like kind, but in no event, less than a reasonable degree of care, and
 - 2. Advise each of their respective employees, agents, attorneys and independent contractors who have access to such Confidential Information.
- C. Notwithstanding the foregoing, either Party may disclose the other Party's Confidential Information to the extent required by applicable law or regulation or by order of a court or other governmental entity, in which case such Party will so notify the other Party as soon as practicable and in any event at least thirty (30) days prior to such Party making such required disclosure.
- D. The Parties have determined that as of the Effective Date of this Contract, they do not need to enter into a Business Associate Agreement as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, "HIPAA"). In addition, any access that Company may have to Protected Health Information, as defined under HIPAA, shall be incidental or only as allowed pursuant to 45 C.F.R. 164.512(b)(1)(iii). If at any time during this Contract the parties determine that they either need to amend this Contract or enter into any ancillary agreements in order to comply with HIPAA, they will work together in good faith to make such amendments or execute such agreements in a timely manner.
- E. Security
 - 1. Security - Contractor shall establish and maintain appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability confidential information.
 - 2. Agents and Subcontractors - Contractor shall ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides confidential information, agrees to implement reasonable and appropriate safeguards to protect County information.
 - 3. Security Incidents - For purposes of this agreement, a Security Incident means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system operations. Contractor shall report any Security Incident of which it becomes aware to County. This does not include trivial incidents that occur on a daily basis, such as scans, or unsuccessful attempts to penetrate computer networks or servers maintained by Contractor.

F. Return of Materials/Information Destruction:

All documents and other tangible objects containing or representing Confidential Information which was disclosed by HCA, and all copies thereof which are in the possession of the Contractor, shall be and remain the property of HCA and shall be promptly returned or destroyed.

1. The Contractor shall permanently remove all stored data from the hard drive and cache memory of laboratory equipment when removed from HCA
2. The removal of all stored data from the hard drives and cache memory that resides within Contractor equipment shall be in compliance with NIST SP 800-88 and Department of Defense (DoD) 5220.22-compliant sanitation programs.
3. The Contractor shall provide a Sanitation Validation Form verifying that the hard drives were wiped clean or disposed in compliance with NIST SP 800-88 and Department of Defense (DoD) 5220.22-compliant sanitation programs.

EXHIBIT 1

**COUNTY OF ORANGE
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT REQUIREMENTS**

In order to enhance the child support collection efforts of the County of Orange Child Support Services, all contractors are required to provide the following information as listed on the attached form:

- If the Contractor is an individual contractor: Name, date of birth, social security number, and residence address.
- If Contractor is doing business in a form other than as an individual: Name, date of birth, social security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of ten (10) percent or more in the contracting entity.

In addition, all contractors must provide:

- A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all applicable federal and state reporting requirements regarding its employees, and
- A certification that the Contractor has fully complied with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment and will continue to so comply.

In order to comply with child support enforcement requirements of the County of Orange, within ten (10) days of award of Contract, the Contractor agrees to furnish the required contractor data and certifications to the Contract Administrator, Purchasing Agent or the Agency/Department Deputy Purchasing Agent.

Information provided shall be transmitted to the Child Support Office, which has been charged with the establishment and enforcement of child support orders. Copies shall not be retained by the requesting agency.

Failure of the Contractor to submit the data and/or certifications required above or to comply with all federal and state reporting requirements for child support enforcement or to comply with all lawfully served Wage and Earnings Assignment Orders and Notices of Assignment shall constitute a material breach of the Contract. Failure to cure such breach within sixty (60) calendar days of notice from the County shall constitute grounds for termination of the Contract.

EXHIBIT 3 (CONTINUATION)
CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT
CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

1. For an individual Contractor:

Name, date of birth, social security number, and residence address:

Name: _____
D.O.B: _____
Social Security No: _____
Residence Address: _____

1. For Contractor doing business in a form other than as an individual:

The name, date of birth, social security number, and residence address of each individual who owns an interest of ten (10) percent or more in the contracting entity (if no individual owns ten (10) percent or more, write "N/A"):

Name: _____
D.O.B: _____
Social Security No: _____
Residence Address: _____

Name: _____
D.O.B: _____
Social Security No: _____
Residence Address: _____

Name: _____
D.O.B: _____
Social Security No: _____
Residence Address: _____

(Additional sheets may be used if necessary)

